# PHONETICS MADE EASY

# A Manual

of

Language Acquisition for Cross-Cultural Effectiveness

Compiled and adapted by various individuals:

Tom McCormick Bruce Langford Peter Pikkert et. al.

Edited by

Ellen Errington, Summer Institute of Linguistics

~ LACE Version ~

# **CONTENTS**

Contents	2
How This Manual Came To Be	3
Introduction	4
IPA Symbols and Their English Equivalents.	6
Phonetics Procedures	8
Some Basic Terminology	8
Consonants and Vowels	9
Points of Articulation.	9
"Let's Get To Know Our Points of Articulation" Chart	10
Face Diagram of Articulators	11
Stops	12
The Glottal Stop	16
Fricatives	18
Vowels	20
Vowel Chart	21
Complete Chart of Vowels.	24
Affricates	25
Nasals	27
Velar Fricatives	30
Voice Modification	32
Flaps and Trills	33
Laterals	37
Tracking	39
Pitch Variation	40
Pharyngeal Consonants	44
Not Everyone Sounds Alike	45
References	46

#### HOW THIS MANUAL CAME TO BE

We don't know if the linguistic abilities the disciples received at Pentecost stayed with them. When St. Thomas arrived in India, for instance, did he have to learn Hindi from scratch? Succeeding generations of cross-cultural Christian ministers certainly had to learn their host culture's language and adapt to its culture the hard way: through years of laborious study.

In the course of church history some have sought to help those involved in this arduous process. While "Crusades" were still in vogue in Europe, Raymond Lull established the Middle Eastern languages departments in a number of universities. Early in the 20<sup>th</sup> century the Anglican clergyman, Temple Gairdner, started an Arabic language school in Cairo. Since World War II, numerous language schools, secular and otherwise, now teach the world's major languages.

In the 1930s, Cameron Townsend, the founder of Wycliffe Bible Translators (WBT), realized that there was a lot people can do to prepare themselves in advance for more effective language learning. That vision led to the establishment of the Summer Institute of Linguistics (SIL). It offers pre-field courses to prepare budding Bible translators for effective language learning. For those not heading for "the jungle", however, those courses were often too much of a good thing—after all, not everyone heading overseas is going as a Bible translator.

The Missionary Training Institute in Colorado and the now defunct Toronto Institute of Linguistics responded by developing two-week programs which distilled the best of applied linguistics for those heading overseas; the Center for Intercultural Studies (CIT) and the Toronto-based MissionPrep carry on that tradition.

Some of us involved in the SIL, CIT and MissionPrep training programs felt the need for an introductory phonetics manual suitable for the courses these organizations offer. *Phonetics Made Easy* is the result of that effort. Feel free to copy and use it as you please. If it proves useful let us know; hearing that you or your students speak their target language more precisely is our reward.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

When you speak a foreign language, your pronunciation is not a factor of fluency...<u>unless</u>...you speak so poorly no one can understand you. But your pronunciation <u>is</u> the first thing native speakers notice; in spite of dialectical differences, they are all agreed on



what is acceptable speech. When you speak their language, is your speech acceptable? This should be possible – after all, we all possess the same kind of vocal "hardware" (mouth, tongue, teeth, lips, nose, etc.), and can produce the same sounds. So, "I can't make that sound" is not really the case. Yes you can! And why would you <u>not</u> want to?

Becoming aware of what your mouth is doing in the pronunciation of words is the first step toward becoming a better speaker of another language as you learn it. As you pronounce each of the following words in the right column, pay attention to how the initial consonant of each word is being produced. Then write that consonant in a blank next to the proper description.

Lower lip touches upper lip	Key
Lower lip touches upper teeth	lie buy vie
Tongue touches front teeth	pie
Tongue touches ridge in back of upper teeth	guy die thy
Back of tongue touches back of roof of mouth	thy nigh fie tie
	my

PHONETICS is the linguistic discipline which addresses the recognition, production and recording of the different speech sounds. Questions like "How and where are those sounds produced?", "Are there different categories of sounds that share certain features?", and "How can they all be written?"...these questions come to mind.

Focus on what happens to the air when you produce (and hold) the initial consonant of each of these words. Write the word in the appropriate column.

pay zoo may Lou say boo Kay vale lay tale they gale day hay Faye nay	Air is completely stopped	Hissing, buzzing, or friction occurs	Air comes out only through nose (nasal)	Air comes out laterally around sides of tongue
---	---------------------------------	--	---	--

There are about 700 speech sounds in the world. When you were born, you were able to produce any of them, but since you only needed a few, your mouth locked onto those sounds it needed to make you sound like everyone else around you. Even though you are still able to produce those hundreds of other speech sounds, you are no longer working with a "clean slate." This is where phonetics training comes in along with the practice necessary to result in good pronunciation.

VOICED sounds occur when the vocal folds in the larynx (i.e. the GLOTTIS) are close together and vibrating. VOICELESS sounds occur when the vocal folds are apart and are stationary.

Practice turning the voicing on and off without stopping the flow of air. You will need to refer to #s 21 and 22 on page 8 for the symbols on the bottom row.

Drill 1	Drill 2	Drill 3	Drill 4
ffffffvvvvvv	ffvvffvvffvv	v v f f v v f f v v f f	f v f v f v f v f v f v f v
s s s s s s s z z z z z z	s s z z s s z z s s z z	Z z s s z z s s z z s s	s z s z s z s z s z s z s z
[[[]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]]	\$\$\$3\$\$\$3\$\$\$33	33[]33]]33]]	\$3\$3\$3\$3\$3\$3

Some of the *th*- consonants in the following italicized words are voiced and some are voiceless. Again, a sound is voiced when the vocal folds of the larynx are close together and vibrating as air flows over them from the lungs (see diagram on page 14). As you produce the following words, hold the *th*- to hear if it is voiced or voiceless. List the words in the appropriate column. Cover your ear to hear the sound better.

Voiceless th- $[\theta]^1$	Voiced th- [ð]	thy	thousand
	<u></u> [0]	there	this
		think	that
		them	thumb
		theme	thimble
		thigh	those

"Phonetics training" has one target: <u>you</u>; that is, your ears and mouth. The goal is to finetune your hearing and to help you regain as much conscious control of your vocal apparatus as possible. "Pronunciation practice" has an altogether different target: <u>your new language</u>, specifically the unfamiliar sounds. The goal is mastery – hearing those sounds correctly and producing them accurately. Phonetics training <u>precedes</u> pronunciation practice and helps you bring more in ear-sensitivity and mouth-control to that practice.

On the following pages you will find new terminology, discussions, suggestions and exercises that will assist you as you embark on your attempt to help your mouth "get it right." This will be your exposure to phonetics itself.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> A symbol(s) within a pair of brackets indicates that it represents a distinct phonetic utterance.

	<u>Symbol</u>	Description	English Equivalent
	$\mathbf{p}^{\mathrm{h}}$	voiceless bilabial aspirated stop	"p" in <i>pill</i>
1	t <sup>h</sup>	voiceless alveolar aspirated stop	"t" in <i>till</i>
~ ~ ~	k <sup>h</sup>	voiceless velar aspirated stop	"k" in <i>kill</i>
۷	р	voiceless bilabial stop	"p" in <i>spill</i>
4	t	voiceless alveolar stop	"t" in <i>still</i>
(	k	voiceless velar stop	"k" in <i>skill</i>
· ·	Ъ	Voiced bilabial stop	"b" in <i>bill</i>
5	d	Voiced alveolar stop	"d" in <i>dill</i>
Ç	g	Voiced velar stop	"g" in gill
1(	?	glottal stop	glottis closure between "uh" & "oh" in "uh- oh"
11	φ	voiceless bilabial fricative	no equivalent
12	β	Voiced bilabial fricative	no equivalent
1:	f	voiceless labiodental fricative	"f " in <i>fan</i>
14	v	Voiced labiodental fricative	"v" in van
1:	θ	voiceless interdental fricative	"th" in thin
1(	ð	Voiced interdental fricative	"th" in then
11	Х	voiceless velar fricative	no equivalent
18	Y	voiced velar fricative	no equivalent
19	S	voiceless alveolar grooved fricative	"s" in <i>sip</i>
20	Z	voiced alveolar grooved fricative	"z" in <i>zip</i>
21	ſ	voiceless palato-alveolar grooved fricative	"sh" in <i>ship</i>
22	3	voiced palato-alveolar grooved fricative	"s" in measure
23	ł	voiceless lateral fricative	no equivalent
24	ß	voiced lateral fricative	no equivalent

IPA SYMBOLS & ENGLISH EQUIVALENTS

2:	Н	voiceless glottal fricative	"h" in <i>heap</i>
20	L	voiced lateral approximant	"l" in <i>log</i>
27	М	voiced bilabial nasal	"m" in mode
28	Ν	voiced alveolar nasal	"n" in <i>node</i>
25	ñ	voiced palato-alveolar nasal	"ny" in canyon
3(	ŋ	voiced velar nasal	"ng" in sing
31	r	voiced alveolar approximant	"r" in <i>run</i>
32	ſ	voiced alveolar flap	"dd" in <i>buddy</i>
3:	R	voiced alveolar trill	no equivalent
34	Ŗ	voiceless uvular trill	French "r" in <i>très</i>
3:	R	voiced uvular trill	French "r" in <i>rue</i>
3(	t∫	voiceless palato-alveolar affricate	"ch" in <i>choke</i>
31	dʒ	voiced palato-alveolar affricate	"j" in <i>joke</i>
			46 <b>?? · 11</b> /
31	j / w	voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant	"w" in well
37	j / w Symbol	voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant	"w" in <i>well</i> English Equivalent
31	j / w <u>Symbol</u> I	voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant           Description of vowel           close front unrounded vowel	"w" in <i>yell</i> "w" in <i>well</i> <u>English Equivalent</u> "ee" in <i>beet</i>
	j / w Symbol I I	Voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant         Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel	"y' in yell/ "w" in well English Equivalent "ee" in beet "i" in bit
	j / w <u>Symbol</u> I I E	Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel	"y' in yell/ "w" in well <u>English Equivalent</u> "ee" in <i>beet</i> "i" in <i>bit</i> "a" in <i>bait</i>
	j / w Symbol I Γ Ε ε	Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel         open-mid front unrounded vowel	"y' in yell/ "w" in well <u>English Equivalent</u> "ee" in <i>beet</i> "i" in <i>bit</i> "a" in <i>bait</i> "e" (unglided) in <i>bet</i>
	j / w Symbol I E ε Æ	Voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant         Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel         open-mid front unrounded vowel         near-open front unrounded vowel	"y' in yell/ "w" in well <u>English Equivalent</u> "ee" in <i>beet</i> "i" in <i>bit</i> "a" in <i>bait</i> "e" (unglided) in <i>bet</i> "a" in <i>bat</i>
	j / w Symbol I E ε Æ ο	Voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant         Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel         open-mid front unrounded vowel         near-open front unrounded vowel         mid central unrounded vowel	"y" in yell/ "w" in well English Equivalent "ee" in beet "i" in bit "a" in bait "e" (unglided) in bet "a" in bat "u" in but
	j / w Symbol I E E Æ ə w	Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel         open-mid front unrounded vowel         near-open front unrounded vowel         mid central unrounded vowel         close back unrounded vowel	"y" in yell/ "w" in well English Equivalent "ee" in beet "i" in bit "a" in bait "e" (unglided) in bet "a" in bat "u" in but no equivalent
	j / w Symbol I E ε Æ ο u U	Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel         open-mid front unrounded vowel         near-open front unrounded vowel         mid central unrounded vowel         close back unrounded vowel	"y" in yell/ "w" in well English Equivalent "ee" in beet "i" in bit "a" in bait "e" (unglided) in bet "a" in bat "u" in but no equivalent "oo" in boot
	j / w <b>Symbol</b> I E ε Æ 2 U U υ	Voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant         Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel         open-mid front unrounded vowel         near-open front unrounded vowel         mid central unrounded vowel         close back unrounded vowel         near-close back unrounded vowel	"y" in yell/ "w" in well English Equivalent "ee" in beet "i" in bit "a" in bait "e" (unglided) in bet "a" in bat "u" in but no equivalent "oo" in boot "oo" in book
	j / w <b>Symbol</b> I E ε AE ο U U υ Ο	Voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant         Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel         open-mid front unrounded vowel         near-open front unrounded vowel         mid central unrounded vowel         close back unrounded vowel         close back rounded vowel         close back rounded vowel         close back rounded vowel         close back rounded vowel         near-close back unrounded vowel	<ul> <li>"y" in yell/</li> <li>"w" in well</li> <li>English Equivalent</li> <li>"ee" in beet</li> <li>"i" in bit</li> <li>"a" in bait</li> <li>"e" (unglided) in bet</li> <li>"a" in bat</li> <li>"u" in but</li> <li>no equivalent</li> <li>"oo" in book</li> <li>"oa" (unglided) in boat</li> </ul>
	j / w <b>Symbol</b> I E ε A 2 3 W U U U U 0 Ο 2	Voiced palatal approximant/voiced labial-velar approximant         Description of vowel         close front unrounded vowel         near-close front unrounded vowel         close-mid front unrounded vowel         open-mid front unrounded vowel         near-open front unrounded vowel         close back unrounded vowel         close back rounded vowel         close back rounded vowel         close back rounded vowel         close back rounded vowel         near-close back unrounded vowel         open-mid back rounded vowel	<ul> <li>"y" in yell/</li> <li>"w" in well</li> <li>English Equivalent</li> <li>"ee" in beet</li> <li>"i" in bit</li> <li>"a" in bait</li> <li>"e" (unglided) in bet</li> <li>"a" in bat</li> <li>"u" in but</li> <li>no equivalent</li> <li>"oo" in boot</li> <li>"oo" in book</li> <li>"oa" (unglided) in boat</li> <li>"ou" in bought</li> </ul>

#### PHONETICS PROCEDURES

- 1. Watch your LANGUAGE HELPER's (LH) mouth. Get close! How does their tongue move? How far does it come forward or go backward? How rounded are their lips?
- 2. Listen intently. You will not be able to produce a sound until you hear it right.
- 3. English is "lip lazy." We tend to glide into our vowels (more about this later) thereby producing more than one vowel sound. Many languages shape their vowels before they say them, producing what we call pure vowels. Concentrate on producing pure vowels.
- 4. Isolate those sounds you find difficult, and set up drills. If possible, find words where the difficult sounds occur at the beginning, in the middle, and at the end of words. The exercises on the following pages will demonstrate this.
- 5. Record your LH reading children's stories slowly and with feeling. That kind of reading highlights individual sounds.
- 6. Record yourself trying to read the same stories. Doing so enables you to compare your pronunciation with that of your LH.
- 7. You must learn to listen to yourself speak, and then self-correct.
- 8. Don't be confused by the way a language is written. Often, letters in the alphabet cover more than one sound. Remember, English has twenty-six letters which, alone or in combination with others, represent forty-four sounds.
- 9. When you sat down at your table, you found a small mirror along with your notebook. Whenever necessary, use it during the session to see what's going on in your mouth.

#### SOME BASIC TERMINOLOGY

- 1. AIR MECHANISM: Where does the air originate? The lungs, the larynx, or the mouth? In what direction does the air move? Is it pushed out through the mouth or nose (egressive), or is it sucked in (ingressive)?
- 2. VOICING: Air coming up from the lungs can be made to cause the vocal folds in the larynx to vibrate. If they vibrate, a "voiced" sound is produced. If not, "voiceless" sounds occur. If you're wondering if a sound is voiced or not, put your fingers on your LH's throat (if allowed). If you can feel it vibrating it is voiced.
- 3. STOPS: Stops occur when the airstream's flow is completely impeded momentarily at some point in the mouth or throat.
- 4. ASPIRATION: A puff of air immediately following the release of a stop.
- 5. FRICATIVES: Fricatives occur when the airstream's flow is greatly impeded (but not completely) on its way through a restricted passage in the mouth or throat.
- 6. AFFRICATES: An affricate is a stop that is released into a fricative.
- 7. NASALS: Nasal sounds occur when the airstream passes through the nasal cavity.
- 8. LATERALS: Laterals occur when the center of the tongue makes closure against the roof of the mouth and the air flow passes around the sides of the tongue.

#### **CONSONANTS & VOWELS**

Human speech sounds fall into two categories: CONSONANTS and VOWELS. With consonants, the airstream from the lungs is at least partially obstructed; with vowels, the mouth is open and the tongue is not touching the roof of the mouth, the teeth, or the lips. Thus vowels have a steady, uninterrupted airstream flowing out of the mouth from the lungs.

Since there is virtually no restriction in the flow of air with the production of vowels, they are made by manipulating the <u>internal</u> shape of the mouth with the position of the tongue and the shape of the lips.

For instance, when we say "ee" as in "sheep," the tongue is high and to the front of the mouth, and the lips are relaxed and unrounded. When we say "oo" as in "boot," the tongue is high and to the back of the mouth, and the lips are rounded. When we say "a" as in "pat," the tongue is low and to the front of the mouth. In English, vowels produced by the back of the tongue are accompanied by rounded lips (there is one exception), and those produced by the front of the tongue with unrounded lips. This is not necessarily the case in other languages.

Accents fall on vowels, not on consonants.

#### **POINTS OF ARTICULATION**

In the production of consonants, the place where the airstream is stopped or impeded is called the POINT OF ARTICULATION. That is the point where some part of the lower mouth touches or comes near to some part of the upper mouth.

- 1. BILABIAL: A sound made using both lips (p, b).
- 2. LABIODENTAL: A sound made using the lower lip and upper teeth (f, v).
- 3. INTERDENTAL: A sound made when the tongue tip is placed between the upper and lower teeth ("th" as in "thin" and "then").
- 4. ALVEOLAR: A sound made when the tongue tip makes closure with the alveolar ridge (the gum ridge behind the upper front teeth) (t, d).
- 5. PALATAL: A sound made when the tongue makes closure with some point on the hard palate (s, z).
- 6. VELAR: A sound made when the back of the tongue makes closure at or near the velum (k, g).
- 7. UVULAR: A sound made when the airstream causes the tip of the uvula to move (French "r").



	Point of Articulation	Active Articulator	Passive Articulator
1	Bilabial		
2	Labiodental		
3	Interdental		
4	Dental		
5	Alveolar		
6	Retroflexed Alveolar		
7	Fronted Palato- alveolar		
8	Palato-Alveolar		
9	Retroflexed Palato- alveolar		
10	Palatal		
11	Velar		
12	Uvular		
13	Pharyngeal		
14	Glottal		

"Let's Get To Know Our Points of Articulation" Chart

# ARTICULATORS



# **STOPS**

A STOP occurs when the exhaled air is completely blocked for a brief moment at the point of articulation. It cannot get out through either the nose or mouth. The major stops are [b] & [p] (bilabial), [d] & [t] (alveolar), [g] & [k] (velar), and [?] (glottal). There are voiced and voiceless stops.

#### 1. <u>Voiced Stops</u> [b], [d] and [g]

A voiced stop requires the vocal folds to vibrate as air passes over them. This means that there is air movement but all exits are closed. As the voiced stop is produced, air fills the oral cavity (cheeks, back of mouth) momentarily. Then it is released.

English speakers vary greatly in the amount of voicing they give to the voiced stops in their language. As you pronounce the following words, pay attention to the rumble in your throat. Place your fingers on your larynx or cover your ears. You will be able to feel and hear the vibration in your throat.

2. Exaggerate the Voicing of the Initial Stops in Each Word

Barry's ball-batting's better.

Dotty doesn't dance divinely.

Gary got good grades.

#### **Oral Exercises**

Repeat the following words, going across each row first, and then down each column.



#### Drill 5

beer	bale	Bash	bore
deer	dale	Dash	door
gear	gale	Gash	gore

#### Voiceless Aspirated Stops [p<sup>h</sup>], [t<sup>h</sup>] and [k<sup>h</sup>]

In linguistics ASPIRATION means a puff of air. A stop is ASPIRATED when there is a slight puff of air immediately following the release of the stop. English speakers control aspirated stops very naturally at the <u>beginning</u> of words, so this is no problem for them. Say the following words while holding the back of your hand in front of your mouth and notice the puff of air that follows the release of each stop.

#### Pare tare Care

Aspiration is written phonetically by a raised "h" immediately following the stop. [p<sup>h</sup>, t<sup>h</sup>, k<sup>h</sup>].

 $[p^h a_I]$   $[t^h a_I]$   $[k^h a_I]$ 

(Remember! Square brackets indicate that what's contained therein is phonetic transcription. From this point on, brackets will <u>not</u> be employed in the exercises.)

#### Oral Exercises

Practice the following, exaggerating the aspiration; i.e. puff more than you normally would do. Pay attention to that puff and realize that it is there. In each drill, read across the row first and then down.

<u>Drill 6</u>	Drill 7	Drill 8
ap <sup>h</sup> a ap <sup>h</sup> a ap <sup>h</sup> a	at <sup>h</sup> a at <sup>h</sup> a at <sup>h</sup> a	ak <sup>h</sup> a ak <sup>h</sup> a ak <sup>h</sup> a
$ap^h$ $ap^h$ $ap^h$	$at^h$ $at^h$ $at^h$	ak <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup>
$p^{h}a p^{h}a p^{h}a$	t <sup>h</sup> a t <sup>h</sup> a t <sup>h</sup> a	k <sup>h</sup> a k <sup>h</sup> a k <sup>h</sup> a
p <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> a	t <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> a	k <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> a

#### Voiceless Unaspirated Stops [p], [t] and [k]

A stop is UNASPIRATED when there is <u>no</u> puff of air after release of the stop. Producing unaspirated stops at the beginning of words is not natural for native English speakers because none occur in word-initial position. However, they <u>do</u> occur immediately following [s].

#### **Oral Exercises**

Place the top of a sheet of paper or the end of a 5-inch strip in front of your mouth and produce the following contrasts several times in each drill. In each drill, read across <u>only</u>!

Drill 9	<u>9</u>	Drill 1	<u>10</u>	Drill 1	<u>1</u>
pare	spare	pore	spore	pool	spool
tare	stare	tore	store	tool	stool
care	scare	core	score	cool	school

Notice how the paper is blown away upon saying the first word of each pair but not after the second word in that pair. The stops in the second word of each pair are unaspirated and therefore different.

Now, taking the word *spare*, practice the following sequence as you say the word:



Follow the same sequence for *stare*, *scare*, *spore*, *store*, *score*, *spool*, *stool* and *school*.

#### **Oral Exercises**

Listen to and exaggerate the difference in the following. Read down:

-		Drill 12	Drill 13	Drill 14
1	voiced:	babababababa	dadadadada	gagagagagaga
2	voiceless unaspirated:	papapapapapa	tatatatatata	kakakakakaka
3	voiceless aspirated:	p <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> a	t <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> a	k <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> a

# Oral Exercises

Make a definite distinction between the <u>aspirated</u> (puffed) and <u>unaspirated</u> (non-puffed) stops. In each drill, read across the row first, then down each column.

<u>Drill 15</u>			<u>Drill 16</u>			<u>Drill 17</u>		
pala	pama	pasa	tala	tama	tasa	kala	kama	kasa
pala	pama	pasa	tala	tama	tasa	kala	kama	kasa
pala	pama	pasa	tala	tama	tasa	kala	kama	kasa
$p^hala$	$p^hama$	p <sup>h</sup> asa	t <sup>h</sup> ala	t <sup>h</sup> ama	t <sup>h</sup> asa	k <sup>h</sup> ala	k <sup>h</sup> ama	$k^h$ asa
p <sup>h</sup> ala	p <sup>h</sup> ama	p <sup>h</sup> asa	t <sup>h</sup> ala	t <sup>h</sup> ama	t <sup>h</sup> asa	k <sup>h</sup> ala	k <sup>h</sup> ama	k <sup>h</sup> asa
p <sup>h</sup> ala	p <sup>h</sup> ama	p <sup>h</sup> asa	t <sup>h</sup> ala	t <sup>h</sup> ama	t <sup>h</sup> asa	k <sup>h</sup> ala	k <sup>h</sup> ama	k <sup>h</sup> asa

# More Oral Exercises – In All Positions

Drill 18			Drill 1	<u>9</u>		Drill 20	<u>)</u>	
apa	apa	apa	ata	ata	ata	aka	aka	aka
$ap^{h}a$	$ap^ha$	apha	$at^ha$	$at^ha$	at <sup>h</sup> a	ak <sup>h</sup> a	akha	akha
ap	ap	ap	at	at	at	ak	ak	ak
$ap^{h}$	$ap^{h}$	$ap^{h}$	$at^{h}$	$at^h$	at <sup>h</sup>	$ak^h$	$ak^h$	$ak^h$
pa	pa	ра	ta	ta	ta	ka	ka	ka
$p^{h}a$	$p^{h}a$	pha	t <sup>h</sup> a	t <sup>h</sup> a	t <sup>h</sup> a	$k^h a$	k <sup>h</sup> a	k <sup>h</sup> a
pap <sup>h</sup> a	$pap^ha$	pap <sup>h</sup> a	tat <sup>h</sup> a	tat <sup>h</sup> a	tat <sup>h</sup> a	kak <sup>h</sup> a	kak <sup>h</sup> a	kakha
p <sup>h</sup> apa	pap <sup>h</sup> a	p <sup>h</sup> apa	tat <sup>h</sup> a	t <sup>h</sup> ata	tat <sup>h</sup> a	k <sup>h</sup> aka	kak <sup>h</sup> a	k <sup>h</sup> aka

Drill 21		<u>Drill 22</u>		Drill 23	
'palo <sup>2</sup>	shovel	'talo	sprout	'kilo	kilogram
'pelo	hair	'telo	fabric	'kuna	cradle
$p^{\rm h}ak^{\rm h}$	(pock)	t <sup>h</sup> ul	(tool)	k <sup>h</sup> il	(keel)
$p^{\mathrm{h}}$ ə $k^{\mathrm{h}}$	(puck)	t <sup>h</sup> ɛl	(tell)	k <sup>h</sup> ul	(cool)
'pata	pal	'toma	he takes	'kano	grey
'peto	bodice	'tumba	grave	'kono	cone
$p^{h}at^{h}$	(pot)	't <sup>h</sup> ami	(Tommy)	k <sup>h</sup> an	(con)
$p^{\rm h} \sigma t^{\rm h}$	(put)	't <sup>h</sup> əmi	(tummy)	k <sup>h</sup> on	(cone)
'pago	I pay	'toka	he plays	'keke	cake
'pego	I beat	to'ko	he played	'koka	cocaine
$p^{h}it^{h}$	(peat)	't <sup>h</sup> okən	(token)	$k^{h}ok^{h}$	(Coke)
$p^{\rm h}\epsilon t^{\rm h}$	(pet)	't <sup>h</sup> ukən	(toucan)	k <sup>h</sup> ık <sup>h</sup>	(kick)
'paño	cloth material	'tino	common sense	'komiko	comical
'puño	fist	'tono	tone	'kimika	chemistry
$p^{h} lpha t^{h}$	(pat)	t <sup>h</sup> in	(teen)	'k <sup>h</sup> amıkəl	?
$p^{h}ack^{h}$	(pack)	t <sup>h</sup> IN	(tin)	'k <sup>h</sup> ımıstıi	?
'piso	floor	'tako	taco	'kinto	fifth
'peso	weight	'toco	I touch	'kanto	singing

Even More Oral Exercises – with Real Words (Spanish & English)

Additional Practice with Stops

Drill 24			
'p <sup>h</sup> aba	ga'p <sup>h</sup> a	'tap <sup>h</sup> a	'p <sup>h</sup> ap <sup>h</sup> a
paba	ga'pa	'tapa	'papa
'baba	ga'ba	'taba	'baba
't <sup>h</sup> aba	ga't <sup>h</sup> a	'tat <sup>h</sup> a	't <sup>h</sup> at <sup>h</sup> a
'taba	ga'ta	'tata	'tata
'daba	ga'da	'tada	'dada
'kʰaba	ga'k <sup>h</sup> a	'tak <sup>h</sup> a	'k <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> a
'kaba	ga'ka	'taka	'kaka
'gaba	ga'ga	'taga	'gaga

\_\_\_\_\_

 $<sup>^{2}</sup>$  A vertical hash mark preceding a syllable ('patu) indicates that stress is on that syllable.

#### THE GLOTTAL STOP

The glottal stop [?] deserves special discussion since it is not truly a vocal sound but rather a phenomenon. When the glottis closes completely so that no air can flow into or out of the lungs over the vocal folds, a glottal stop has occurred. They are frequent in English but are never included in the spelling of English words. Consequently, many English speakers are not even aware that they have been producing glottal stops all their lives. You produce one every time you hold your breath (as when you go under water) for even a millisecond. There is a glottal stop at the beginning of most English words beginning with a vowel. There is a glottal stop in the middle of the expression "uh-oh" (an interjection when something goes wrong). There is also a glottal stop in the middle of the negative expressions "huh-uh" and "hmm-mm." Glottal stops are very common in English, but we seldom notice them because their presence or absence never determines the meanings of words. Consequently, they are not included in the English writing system.

However, there are some languages in which they are very important since two words can be exactly alike except that one contains a glottal stop and the other one does not. In Tabasco Chontal of Mexico, for example, [t<sup>h</sup>i] means *maybe* and [t<sup>h</sup>i?] means *mouth*.

#### **Oral Exercises**

<u>Drill 25</u>				
aba	eba	iba	oba	uba
aba?	eba?	iba?	oba?	uba?
?aba	?eba	?iba	?oba	?uba
?aba?	?eba?	?iba?	?oba?	?uba?

#### More Oral Exercises ([h] is a glottal consonant. Pay attention to it as well.)

<u>Drill 26</u>				
$ak^h$	a?k <sup>h</sup>	?ak <sup>h</sup>	?a?k <sup>h</sup>	ahk <sup>h</sup>
$ek^h$	e?k <sup>h</sup>	?ek <sup>h</sup>	?e?k <sup>h</sup>	ehk <sup>h</sup>
$\mathbf{i}\mathbf{k}^{\mathrm{h}}$	i?k <sup>h</sup>	?ik <sup>h</sup>	?i?k <sup>h</sup>	ihk <sup>h</sup>
$\mathbf{ok}^{\mathrm{h}}$	o?k <sup>h</sup>	?ok <sup>h</sup>	?o?k <sup>h</sup>	ohk <sup>h</sup>
uk <sup>h</sup>	u?k <sup>h</sup>	?uk <sup>h</sup>	2u2k <sup>h</sup>	uhk <sup>h</sup>

#### Oral Exercises with Real Languages

<u>Drill 27</u>	(Tabasco Chontal of Mexico)	Drill 28	<u>B</u> (Choapan Zapotec of Mexico)
t <sup>h</sup> I	maybe	Biu	dove
t <sup>h</sup> i?	mouth	biu?	moon, mouth
t <sup>h</sup> u	to	bi?u	flea
t <sup>h</sup> ɯ?	very	zi?	injury
t <sup>h</sup> a?a	yours	zi?i	heavy

Additional Practice with the Glottal Stop

Drill 29				<u>Mimicry</u>	<u>1</u> (Solomon .	Islands)	
'ερα	pa'?uma	'?ə?o	'k <sup>h</sup> ı?n	'ilia	do	'oe	you (sg.)
ˈɛ?pɑ	?an't <sup>h</sup> u	?ə'p <sup>h</sup> an	gi'?an	'?ilia	to dig	'o?e	adultery
'?ɛpɑ	't <sup>h</sup> a?k <sup>h</sup> o?	si'?an	pa?u'?inu	'ai	woman	'abu	flood
'ɛpa?	?a?a?a?	?ənˈdu	'sa?u?inu	'?ai	tree	'?abu	holy

The following table introduces the symbols for the stops we have already studied. They are organized in columns according to their places of articulation and in rows according to their voicing.

	Bilabial	Alveolar	Velar	Glottal		
Voiceless	$\mathbf{p}^{\mathbf{h}}$	t <sup>h</sup>	k <sup>h</sup>		aspirated	
voiceless	Р	Т	k	2	stop	
voiced	В	D	g			
active articulator	lower lip	tongue tip	tongue back	vocal folds		
passive articulator	upper lip	alveolar ridge	front of velum			

#### **FRICATIVES**

A FRICATIVE is a speech sound in which the airstream is greatly but not completely impeded. Turbulence in the airstream at the point where the articulators meet produces an audible noise --- a "hissing" or "buzzing" sound that may sound like friction, hence the word fricative. Below you see a table introducing the symbols for the first group of fricative sounds we will study. They are organized just like the previous table for stops.

	Bilabial	Labiodental	Interdental	
voiceless	Φ	F	θ	fricative
voiced	β	V	ð	
active articulator	lower lip	lower lip	tongue tip	
passive articulator	upper lip	upper teeth	teeth	

[f], [v],  $[\theta]$  and  $[\delta]$  are common English sounds and pose no problem for most native English speakers. Two pairs of words to demonstrate contrast of these sounds at the beginning of a word are *feel* [f] and *veal* [v]; *thin* [ $\theta$ ] and *then* [ $\delta$ ].

#### **Oral Exercises**

Each of the following words contains at least one fricative. Using the table above, fill in the blank spaces to the right of each word with the phonetic symbols of the fricatives in it.

#### Drill 30

cloth	 Ether		theophany	 pavilion	
favor	 fervid		rough	 then	
rhythm	 phantom		clothe	 faith	
thy	 mouth		effrontery	 breathe	
invariable	 mouthe		breath	 avenue	
wrath	 verify	<u> </u>	variable	 morph	
either	 thither		fathom	 python	

But  $[\phi]$  and  $[\beta]$  are not sounds that are common to English.

<u>A Production Hint</u>:  $[\phi]$  Lips are brought together gently, kept relaxed and flat, neither pressed together tightly nor pursed; blow through your lips very gently, as if to blow out a small birthday candle. For  $[\beta]$ , same lip configuration but voiced. Try saying the English phrase *a bubble above Bobby* with very lazy lips and you should approximate the sound.

#### **Oral Exercises**

Drill 31			Drill 32		
φα'φα	α'φαφ	φαφα	βα'φα	α'φαβ	'φαβα
<b>∮</b> a'fa	a'fa∳	ſαφα	βa'fa	a'faβ	'faβa

φα'θα	α'θαφ	'θαφα	βα'θα	α'θαβ	'θαβα
φα'βα	α'βαφ	'βαφα	βα'βα	α'βαβ	'βαβα
φa'va	a'va∳	'va <b></b> a	βa'va	a'vaβ	'vaβa
φa'ða	a'ðaφ	'ðaφa	βa'ða	a'ðaβ	'ðaβa

Then we have a second group of fricatives organized in a table the same way as the first:

	Alveolar	Palato-Alveolar	
Voiceless	S	ſ	grooved fricative/ sibilant
Voiced	Z	3	
active articulator	tongue tip	tongue blade	

[s], [z] and [ʃ] are also common to English with no attendant production problems. Contrast between these three consonants at the beginning of a word can be seen in *seal* [s], *zeal* [z] and *she'll* [ʃ].

[3] occurs in the middle of a number of words such as *measure*, *vision*, *azure*, *leisure*, etc. And it is found in word-final position in a very few words like *mirage*, *barrage*, and *rouge*, words with a definite French influence. The only word in common usage among English speakers where the sound occurs in word-initial position is *genre*, another French loan word.

Most English speakers tend to pronounce initial [ $\int$ ] and [3] with rounded lips. Such is not the case in every language. Say the italicized words in the paragraph above as well as the following ones and observe if your natural inclination is to round your lips to some extent as you pronounce the alveolar and palato-alveolar consonants: *shake, shin, shield, shepherd, genre* and *Za Za*. If so, practice controlling this feature of your pronunciation without allowing any lip-rounding.

### Oral Exercises

Each of the following words contains at least one fricative. Fill the blank spaces to the right of each word with the phonetic symbols of the fricatives in it.

### Drill 33

please	 mash	 schools	 houses	
shrink	 cruise	 zebra	 amnesia	
azure	 regime	 nation	 buses	
gracious	 buzzes	 roses	 seashells	
leisure	 fusion	 advice	 fissures	
advise	 oceans	 potion	 seizures	
Jesus	 sure	 collage	 sweet	
shrimp	 measures	 asthma	 Chicago	

Additional Practice with Fricatives

Drill 34				Mimicry	
'aβða	'faθaβ	'ða∫θas	'faφav	'fæðõm	ˈkʰæʒuəl
'av∫a	φα'∫αჳ	' <b>φasa</b> β	3a'ðaf	'θວ?fʊl	ə' <b>ğ</b> ĩnd
∫α'φαθ	φa'βav	sa'βaθ	'θa∫βas	'vaını∫	'zibıə
va'βa	'zazðas	∫αφ'θαβ	'ðaʒzaφ	əˈsæsĩn	'væk <sup>h</sup> ũm

VELAR FRICATIVES are a bit more difficult for native English-speakers and will be covered later.

# **VOWELS**

VOWELS differ from CONSONANTS in that very little exhaled air is obstructed during their production. Consequently they form a continuum of sounds rather than being neatly divisible into separate units whose location in the mouth can be easily pinpointed. Consonant sounds adjacent to vowels can affect the tongue position used on those vowels (and the reverse is somewhat true as well); thus, two vowels perceived as being identical may in fact be produced with different tongue shapes owing to the articulatory characteristics of the surrounding sounds.

#### Basic Considerations When Trying to Identify Vowels

- <u>Tongue height</u>: How high up or low down is the tongue? Note the difference between [hi] (high) and [ha] (low).
- <u>Tongue position</u>: Is the highest part of the tongue toward the front or the back of the mouth? Again, note the difference between [hi] (front) and [hu] (back).
- <u>Lip position</u>: Are the lips rounded (puckered)? Are they relaxed and flat, or are they somewhat spread? Note the difference between [hu] (rounded) and [hɛ] (unrounded).
- <u>Gliding</u>: Does a vowel's quality remain fairly constant throughout its articulation, or does the tongue's position change significantly during pronunciation? Many English vowels are *glided*, such that what may seem to a native speaker to be one vowel is actually a continuous movement through two or more vowel qualities in rapid succession. Compare the common greeting, [ha<sup>i</sup>] (glided), with the southern equivalent of the same greeting, [ha], (constant or pure).
- <u>Voice Quality</u>: What quality of sound accompanies the vowel? Is it voiced or voiceless, short or long, nasalized or not, breathy or laryngealized (somewhat like a creaky door)?

In the past, the variety of vowel sounds has been conceived in terms of an inverted trapezoidal grid within the mouth that represents degrees of tongue height and positions in the front, middle or back of the mouth. These positions on the diagram have been presented as the positions of the highest point of the tongue for each vowel. The diagram is a better picture of how vowel sounds are <u>perceived</u> than of how they are <u>produced</u>. So, when we talk

about a vowel being close, open, front, central, or back, we are talking about the sound of the vowel and only approximately about tongue position. On the next page you will see two diagrams; one is a face diagram with that grid superimposed on it; the other is a blowup of the trapezoidal grid with all twelve vowels from the chart on page 8. See page 30 for a diagram with <u>all</u> the vowels.



The diagram at the bottom of the preceding page introduce symbols representing vowels that are quite similar to English vowels. But they are different from English vowels in one important way: all these symbols represent <u>unglided</u> vowels, i.e. vowels that remain fairly constant in quality throughout their articulation. A number of English vowels are <u>glided</u>, with the tongue position changing significantly during pronunciation, such that what may seem to an English-speaker to be one vowel is actually a continuous movement through two or more vowel qualities in rapid succession.

[I], [e], [ $\epsilon$ ], [ $\epsilon$ ], [ $\alpha$ ], [o] and [ $\alpha$ ] are the vowels in English which are most frequently glided. The [I], [ $\epsilon$ ] and [ $\alpha$ ] are most often followed by an offglide into an [ $\epsilon$ ] and thus become [ $r^{\circ}$ ], [ $\epsilon^{\circ}$ ] and [ $\alpha^{\circ}$ ]. The [e] is influenced by an offglide into [i] when it becomes [ $e^{i}$ ]; and the [o] is influenced by an offglide into [u], as is the [ $\alpha$ ], thus making them [ $o^{u}$ ] and [ $\alpha^{u}$ ] respectively. [ $\alpha$ ] is also influenced by an offglide into [i], making it [ $\alpha^{i}$ ]. The [u] is frequently preceded by an [I] or an [i] onglide. One of the best ways to practice producing pure vowels (i.e. vowels with no glide) is to say them while looking in your mirror. Any movement of the lips or jaw is evidence that gliding is taking place.

#### Hints for Producing Unglided Vowels

- Say [?o?o?o?o?o?o?o?o?o] without allowing any part of your mouth to move. Use your mirror so you will be able to notice any perceptible lip or mouth movement into an [o<sup>u</sup>] glide. Do the same thing with [?e?e?e?e?e?e?e?e] and the other vowels we tend to glide, again not letting your lips or tongue position change. This time watch for any jaw movement.
- If you speak a dialect that has an [<sup>i</sup>u] on-glide, it will show up immediately using this technique.
- Try saying a very long [oooooooh] or [eeeeeeeh], ending by blowing an [h] instead gliding.

#### **Oral Exercises**

The following are English words with all of the common vowels occurring in the language.

<u>Drill 35</u>		<u>Drill 36</u>		<u>Drill 37</u>		<u>Drill 38</u>	
$b\epsilon t^{h}$	pet	bɛ•d	bed	sa•d	sod	k <sup>h</sup> o• <sup>u</sup> d	code
bit <sup>h</sup>	beat	bi•d	bead	$t^{\rm h} {\rm I} p^{\rm h}$	tip	k <sup>h</sup> ut <sup>h</sup>	coot
mət <sup>h</sup>	mutt	mə•d	mud	nuk <sup>h</sup>	nook	$k^{hj}ut^{h}$	cute
sut <sup>h</sup>	suit	su•d	sued	bet <sup>h</sup>	bait	$k^{\rm h}o^{\rm u}t^{\rm h}$	coat
fæt <sup>h</sup>	fat	fæ•d	fad	$k^{h}$ ə $t^{h}$	caught	Je <sup>i</sup> t <sup>h</sup>	rate
Jeth	rate	Je.q	raid	ıoziz	roses	$p^{\rm h}\epsilon^{\rm s}t^{\rm h}$	pet
$k^{\rm h}ot^{\rm h}$	coat	$k^{h}$ o•d	code	ə'bo•d	abode	$be^{i}t^{h}$	bait

Drill 39	<u>)</u> (short, g	lided, long)	Drill 40	<u>)</u> (short, gl	lided, long)	Drill 41	(short, gli	ided, long)
bıt	bı <sup>ə</sup> t	br•t	bɛd	bɛªd	bɛ•d	bæt	bæ <sup>ə</sup> t	bæ•t
fıt	fı²t	fr•t	dɛd	dɛªd	dɛ∙d	k <sup>h</sup> æt	k <sup>h</sup> æ <sup>ə</sup> t	k <sup>h</sup> æ•t
hıt	hı²t	hı•t	fɛd	fɛªd	fɛ•d	fæt	fæ <sup>ə</sup> t	fæ•t
k <sup>h</sup> ıt	k <sup>h</sup> ı <sup>ə</sup> t	k <sup>h</sup> ı•t	hɛd	hɛ॰d	hɛ•d	hæt	hæ <sup>ə</sup> t	hæ•t
lıt	lı²t	lı•t	lɛd	lɛªd	lɛ•d	mæt	mæ <sup>ə</sup> t	mæ•t
mıt	mı <sup>ə</sup> t	mı•t	nɛd	nɛªd	nɛ∙d	næt	næ <sup>ə</sup> t	næ•t
p <sup>h</sup> ıt	$p^{h}$ ı°t	p <sup>h</sup> I't	bar	b°31	p.ar	p <sup>h</sup> æt	p <sup>h</sup> æ <sup>ə</sup> t	p <sup>h</sup> æ•t
sıt	sı <sup>ə</sup> t	sı•t	sɛd	sɛªd	sɛ∙d	Jæt	Jæ⁰t	ıæ•t
wit	wı <sup>ə</sup> t	wŀt	$t^{h}\epsilon d$	$t^h \epsilon^{\text{a}} d$	t <sup>h</sup> ɛ•d	sæt	sæ <sup>ə</sup> t	sæ•t

<u>Oral Exercises – Contrasting</u> [I] and  $[I^{\circ}]$ ; [ $\epsilon$ ] and  $[\epsilon^{\circ}]$ ; [ $\mathfrak{a}$ ] and  $[\mathfrak{a}^{\circ}]$ 

<u>Oral Exercises – Contrasting</u> [e] and [e<sup>i</sup>]; [o] and [o<sup>u</sup>]; [a] and [a<sup>u</sup>] (Remember the length!)

Drill 4	<u>2</u>		Drill 43	<u>3</u>		Drill 44	<u>.</u>	
Bet	be <sup>i</sup> t	be•t	bod	bo <sup>u</sup> d	bo•d	bat	ba <sup>u</sup> t	ba•t
det	<b>d</b> e <sup>i</sup> t	de•t	$\mathbf{k}^{\mathrm{h}}\mathbf{od}$	$k^{\rm h} o^{\rm u} d$	k <sup>h</sup> o•d	dat	da <sup>u</sup> t	da•t
fet	fe <sup>i</sup> t	fe•t	god	go <sup>u</sup> d	go•d	$k^{h}at^{h}$	$k^{\rm h}a^{\rm u}t^{\rm h}$	$k^{\rm h}a{\boldsymbol{\cdot}} t^{\rm h}$
get	ge <sup>i</sup> t	ge•t	lod	lo <sup>u</sup> d	lo•d	fat <sup>h</sup>	$fa^{u}t^{h}$	fa•t <sup>h</sup>
het	he <sup>i</sup> t	he•t	mod	mo <sup>u</sup> d	mo•d	nat <sup>h</sup>	$na^{u}t^{h}$	na•t <sup>h</sup>
let	le <sup>i</sup> t	le•t	nod	no <sup>u</sup> d	no•d	Jath	$Ja^{u}t^{h}$	גםיt <sup>h</sup>
met	me <sup>i</sup> t	me•t	rod	ro <sup>u</sup> d	ro•d	sat	sa <sup>u</sup> t	sa•t
Jet	Jeit	Je t	sod	so <sup>u</sup> d	so•d	$t^{h}at^{h}$	$t^{h}a^{u}t^{h}$	$t^h a \cdot t^h$
wet	we <sup>i</sup> t	wet	t <sup>h</sup> od	$t^{h}o^{u}d$	t <sup>h</sup> o•d	vat <sup>h</sup>	$va^{\mathrm{u}}t^{\mathrm{h}}$	va•t <sup>h</sup>

# Oral Exercises – Three-way Glides

Some dialects of English have extensive gliding. The following two drills highlight several instances of this. Read across, dropping each part of the glide until the main vowel is pure. Look in your mirror as you say them, being careful to observe the presence or lack of glides.

Drill 45			Drill 46		
$k^{h a} o^u k^h$	$k^{\rm h}o^{\rm u}k^{\rm h}$	k <sup>h</sup> ok <sup>h</sup>	dæ <sup>iə</sup> d	dæ <sup>®</sup> d	dæd
$k^{\rm h \bar{e}} o^{\rm u} t^{\rm h}$	$k^{\rm h}o^{\rm u}t^{\rm h}$	k <sup>h</sup> ot <sup>h</sup>	p <sup>h</sup> æ <sup>i</sup> t∫ <sup>h</sup>	pʰæ³t∫ʰ	p <sup>h</sup> æt∫ <sup>h</sup>
$t^{h a} o^{u} d$	$t^{h}o^{u}d$	t <sup>h</sup> od	bæ <sup>iə</sup> d	bæ <sup>°</sup> d	bæd
b <sup>ə</sup> o <sup>u</sup> d	bo <sup>u</sup> d	bod	skæ <sup>iə</sup> b	skæ <sup>ə</sup> b	skæb
$p^{\mathrm{h} \mathtt{e}} o^{\mathrm{u}} k^{\mathrm{h}}$	$p^{\rm h}o^{\rm u}k^{\rm h}$	p <sup>h</sup> ok <sup>h</sup>	læ <sup>iə</sup> m	læ³m	læm
$d^{a}o^{u}nt^{h}$	$do^u nt^h$	dont <sup>h</sup>	bæ <sup>iə</sup> dʒ	bæ <sup>°</sup> dʒ	bæd3
$s^{a}o^{u}k^{h}$	so <sup>u</sup> k <sup>h</sup>	sok <sup>h</sup>	læ <sup>i∍</sup> t∫ <sup>h</sup>	læ³t∫ <sup>h</sup>	læt∫ <sup>h</sup>
1°oªd	p <sub>n</sub> or	bot	k <sup>h</sup> æ <sup>i</sup> t∫ <sup>h</sup>	k <sup>h</sup> æ <sup>∍</sup> t∫ <sup>h</sup>	k <sup>h</sup> æt∫ <sup>h</sup>
$k^{h  abla} o^{u} d$	$k^{h}o^{u}d$	k <sup>h</sup> od	le <sup>iə</sup> dz	lɛ°dʒ	lɛdʒ

### More Oral Exercises

Practice saying the following English words with no glides. Use that mirror!

<u>Drill 47</u>		<u>Drill 48</u>		<u>Drill 49</u>	
bet <sup>h</sup>	bait	bæt <sup>h</sup>	bat	bot <sup>h</sup>	boat
be•d	bade	bæ•d	bad	bo•d	bode
de	day	fæt <sup>h</sup>	fat	bon	bone
det <sup>h</sup>	date	fæ•d	fad	$k^{h}ot^{h}$	coat
$let^{h}$	late	mæt <sup>h</sup>	mat	k <sup>h</sup> o•d	code
le•d	laid	mæ•d	mad	k <sup>h</sup> on	cone
met <sup>h</sup>	mate	næt <sup>h</sup>	gnat	mot <sup>h</sup>	mote
me•d	made	$p^{h} at^{h}$	pat	mo•d	mode
pet <sup>h</sup>	pate	p <sup>h</sup> æ•d	pad	mon	moan
pe•d	paid	ıæt <sup>h</sup>	rat	$t^{h}ot^{h}$	tote
ret <sup>h</sup>	rate	sæt <sup>h</sup>	sat	t <sup>h</sup> o•d	toad
re•d	raid	sæ•d	sad	t <sup>h</sup> o•n	tone

# Complete Chart of Vowels



### **AFFRICATES**

You will recall that a stop is a sound in which a moving airstream is completely stopped at its point of articulation. The air pressure that builds up at that point may be RELEASED in one of three ways: into aspiration (e.g.  $[p^h\alpha]$ ,  $[t^h\alpha]$ , and  $[k^h\alpha]$ ) and called an aspirated stop; into a vowel (e.g.  $[p\alpha]$ ,  $[t\alpha]$ , and  $[k\alpha]$ ) and called simply a stop; or...into a fricative (e.g. [ps], [ts], [ks]) in which case it is called an AFFRICATE.

<u>Drill 50</u>		<u>Drill 51</u>		<u>Drill 52</u>	
k <sup>h</sup> ıks	kicks	t∫ <sup>h</sup> aıdz	charge	ˈbædʒɹ	badger
t∫ʰıp	chip	'bədʒɪt	budget	b1it∫t <sup>h</sup>	breached
bit∫ <sup>h</sup>	beach	gaıdz	guards	'ed31z	edges
dʒɪm	gym	k <sup>h</sup> aps	cops	'ın?t∫t <sup>h</sup>	inched
p <sup>h</sup> Its	pits	'dʒədʒız	judges	'ıɛt∫ʰıd	wretched
t∫ <sup>h</sup> ap	chop	't <sup>h</sup> apsi	toppsy	ˈdɪdʒɪɾəl <sup>4</sup>	digital
bəgz	bugs	't∫h,ıt∫hız <sup>3</sup>	churches	't∫ <sup>h</sup> ın?tsi	chintzy
t∫ <sup>h</sup> uz	choose	p <sup>h</sup> aıt∫ <sup>h</sup>	parch	'p <sup>h</sup> ɪt∫ɹ	pitcher

Here are some common English words containing examples of affricates:

So, an affricate is a sound that consists of a stop that is released into a fricative. The most frequent type of affricate is HOMORGANIC; that is, the place of articulation of the fricative is the <u>same or very nearly the same</u> as that of the stop, e.g. [b $\beta$ ], [d3], and [kx]. However, you may encounter what are called HETERORGANIC affricates, in which the place of articulation of the fricative release is <u>quite distant</u> from that of the stop, e.g. [gz], [kJ] and [tf]. Some languages make frequent use of them, but for our purposes we will define an affricate as a stop released into a fricative, at the same or nearly the same place of articulation, and having the same voicing characteristic as the stop. Below, you see a table of homorganic affricates.

	Bilabial	Labiodental	(Inter)dental	Alveolar	Palato-alveolar	Velar		
vl.				ts <sup>h</sup>	t∫ <sup>h</sup>		aspirated	
vl.	pф	pf	tθ	ts	t∫	kx	affricate	
vd.	bβ	bv	dð	dz	dʒ	gy		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> The symbol [4] has a diacritic hash mark under the symbol which means that it is a syllabic consonant.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Or ['dɪdʒɪt<sup>h</sup>əl]; or ['dɪdʒɪrl] and [dɪdʒɪt<sup>h</sup>]]

# Oral Exercises

Practice the following frame drills three times each.

Drill 53	Drill 54	<u>Drill 55</u>
'dzop <b></b> 4i	'gyabvu	't∫igγæ
'dzobvi	'gyakxu	't∫idzæ
'dzod3i	'gyatθu	't∫it∫ <sup>h</sup> æ
'dzot∫ <sup>h</sup> i	'gyadðu	't∫its <sup>h</sup> æ

# Oral Exercises

<u>Drill 56</u> ( $G\tilde{a}$ of Ghana)		Drill 57 (Fante of Ghana)		
t∫ε	father	'ətsı	he heard	
t∫o	to burn	mi'dzidzi	I eat	
dza	to divide	'adzı	a thing	
dʒi	to be			
dʒu	to wash			

# Oral Exercises

to move

t∫i

Drill 58 (Highland Mazatec of Mexico) lacking t∫a t∫ha brother-in-law big tse ts<sup>h</sup>e clean

t∫<sup>h</sup>e thief

#### **NASALS**

"When the passageway between the nasal and oral cavities is open, there is said to be VELIC OPENING. The upper part of the soft palate (the VELUM), which faces the pharyngeal wall, functions as a door to close off that passageway. When there is VELIC CLOSURE (that is, the velum is raised against the pharyngeal wall, closing the opening to the nasal cavity), air cannot enter the nasal cavity but instead enters only the oral cavity."<sup>5</sup>

NASALS are consonant sounds that are made when the velum is lowered, allowing the sound to resonate in the nasal cavity.<sup>6</sup> Closure between articulators in the mouth prevents the airstream from passing out of the mouth, thereby diverting it through the nose.

Below, you will see a table showing the nasals to be presented in this section. Notice that an under-ring [<sub>o</sub>] is used underneath a nasal symbol to indicate that it is voiceless, unless the symbol involves what is called a descender (a portion of the symbol which drops below the line), in which case an over-ring [°] is written above the symbol. While a labiodental nasal [m] was not included in the chart of IPA symbols on page 8, it is introduced here for the purpose of filling out the chart. It has no voiceless counterpart because, while theoretically it is possible to make the sound, it is not known to occur in any of the world's languages.

	Bilabial	Labiodental	Alveolar	Palato-alveolar	Velar	
voiceless	m		ņ	ñ	ŋ	nasal
voiced	m	ŋ	n	ñ	ŋ	
active	lower lip	lower lip	Tongue	tongue blade	tongue	
articulator			tip		back	
passive	upper lip	upper teeth	alveolar	behind	velum	
articulator			ridge	alveolar ridge		

#### *Feeling and Seeing the Production of* [m], [n] and [ŋ]

For most native English speakers, [m], [n] and [ŋ] pose no production problems.

- Put your lips in the [m] position; breathe in and out several times. Do not sound the [m].
- Put your tongue in the [n] position and breathe in and out several times.
- Put your tongue in the [ŋ] position and breathe in and out several times. Say the word "song" first to get the initial [ŋ].

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Anita C. Bickford and Rick Floyd, Articulatory Phonetics: Tools for Analyzing the World's Languages (Dallas, TX: SIL International, 2006), p. 3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> The face diagram on page 13 shows a velic opening. If it were closed, there would be no opening into the nasal cavity since it would be back against the pharyngeal wall.

Now, looking in your mirror, sound out [n] and then drop your jaw down and then raise it up several times while maintaining the sound of [n]. Keep your tongue stuck in the n-position. Notice in the mirror the position of your tongue blocking the air from coming out of the mouth. You should be able to see the underside of it.

Go through this same exercise for the sound of [ŋ]. Take notice of the position of the tongue.

Now make an [n] and an [n] one right after the other several times, again looking in your mirror while doing so. Notice the difference in the position of the tongue during the production of both.

 $[\eta]$  poses no problem for English speakers. But it never occurs in word-initial position, and that is where some language-learners encounter difficulty. There are a number of languages around the world that have literally hundreds of words beginning with  $[\eta]$ , Vietnamese being one of them.

#### **Oral Exercises**

Drill 59	Drill 60	Drill 61	Drill 62	Drill 63
'mano	nɔ'ma	mu'nopa	'nɛmɪka	na'ma
'meno	nɔ'me	mu'nope	'ņɛmɪke	na'me
'mino	nɔ'mi	mu'nopi	'nɛmɪki	na'mi
'mono	nɔ'mo	mu'nopo	'nɛmɪko	na'mo
'muno	nɔ'mu	mu'nopu	'nɛmɪku	na'mu

#### **Oral Exercises**

First, cover up drills 62 and 63. Then, while looking at the other three drills, read across each row. Second, uncover drills 62 and 63 and read all the way across each row. Third, read down each column (<u>Careful</u> with drill 63).<sup>7</sup>

Drill 65	<u>Drill 66</u>	Drill 67	<u>Drill 68</u>
'រោរ <del>ា</del>	ព្ <b>រ</b> ព្	ŋı'nam	'nınamə
'ıŋaŋ	ŋaŋ	ŋa'nam	ŋa'namə
່າມະນ	ຐຬຐ	ŋε'nam	ŋɛna'mə
'ıŋiŋ	ŋiŋ	ŋi'nam	'ŋinamɔ
ˈɪŋoŋ	ŋoŋ	ŋo'nam	ŋo'namə
՛ւղսղ	໗uŋ	ŋu'nam	ŋuna'mə
	<u>Drill 65</u> ່າງາງ ່າງລາງ ່າງຣາງ ່າງເງ ່າງວາງ	Drill 65         Drill 66           'ıŋıŋ         ŋıŋ           'ıŋaŋ         ŋaŋ           'ıŋɛŋ         ŋɛŋ           'ıŋiŋ         ŋiŋ           'ŋoŋ         ŋoŋ           'ŋuŋ         ŋoŋ	Drill 65         Drill 66         Drill 67           'ıŋıŋ         ŋıŋ         ŋı'nam           'ıŋaŋ         ŋaŋ         ŋa'nam           'ıŋɛŋ         ŋɛŋ         ŋɛ'nam           'ıŋiŋ         ŋiŋ         ŋi'nam           'ŋŋŋ         ŋoŋ         ŋo'nam           'ŋŋuŋ         ŋuŋ         ŋu'nam

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> While each of the vowels in these drills is nasalized, the subject of nasalization will not be covered until later.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> This is the only true English word in the drill upon which the rest of it is based.

#### Production Hints for the Palato-alveolar Nasal [ñ]

The primary thing to remember is to place the tongue tip behind and touching the lower teeth. That is to prevent it from jumping in and articulating the sound. On page 8, line 28, you read that the English equivalent to this sound is the "ny" in the word *canyon*. While this was close, it was not quite accurate. The tongue blade is placed <u>behind</u> the alveolar ridge to produce the sound <u>without</u> a little [<sup>j</sup>] following it.

When English speakers (American) want to indicate that they have one-upped someone else, they may say,  $[\tilde{n}^{j} \approx \tilde{n}^{j} \approx \tilde{n}$ 

<u>Drill 69</u>		<u>Drill 70</u>		<u>Drill 71</u> (3	Spanish)		
'añ <sup>j</sup> a	'añ <sup>j</sup> a	'aña	aña	'añ <sup>j</sup> o	year	'bañ <sup>j</sup> o	bathroom
'añ <sup>j</sup> e	'eñ <sup>j</sup> a	'añe	'eña	'uñ <sup>j</sup> a	fingernail	'ñ <sup>j</sup> oñ <sup>j</sup> o	dull
'añ <sup>j</sup> i	'iñ <sup>j</sup> a	'añi	'iña	se'ñ <sup>j</sup> al	indication	te'ñ <sup>j</sup> iðo	dyed
'añ <sup>j</sup> æ	'æñ <sup>j</sup> a	'añæ	'æña	'dañ <sup>j</sup> o	harm	pu'ñ <sup>j</sup> aðo	handful
'añ <sup>j</sup> o	oñ <sup>j</sup> a	'año	oña	ka'riñ <sup>j</sup> o	affection	em'peñ <sup>j</sup> o	
'añ <sup>j</sup> u	'uñ <sup>j</sup> a	'añu	uña	ma'ñ <sup>j</sup> ana	morning	determina	tion
						mu'ñ <sup>j</sup> eka	doll

#### <u>Oral Exercises</u>

Mimicry

### Additional Practice with Nasals

'maθni	ŋa'ma	a'ño	'hæŋµ	'ŋai	ma'ñana
'meθni	ŋa'me	e'ño	hãŋgạ	ŋe	pa'ñal
'miθni	ŋa'mi	i'ño	ˈfɪŋgɹ	ŋi	'leña
'moθni	ŋa'mo	o'ño	sĩŋ,ı	'ŋoi	ẽn'gaño
'muθni	ŋa'mu	u'ño	'រĩŋរ	'ŋʊi	ba'ñarse
'məθni	ŋa'mə	ɔ'ño	'sĩŋgul <sub>i</sub>	'ŋɔi	'kũña

#### **VELAR FRICATIVES**

VELAR FRICATIVES are hissing or buzzing sounds created by squeezing air through a narrow passage (or slot) between the back of the tongue and the velum (see p. 14). They are produced with the back of the tongue near the velum (similar to, but not exactly like, the "k" and "g" in English).

- [x] voiceless velar fricative
- [y] voiced velar fricative

The [x] is like a "k", but without the interruption of airflow at the beginning. Don't let your tongue slide back too far – if the sound becomes gargly your tongue has slipped too far back (that is a valid speech sound, but not this one!).

Try saying "key" slowly while rubbing the back your tongue back and forth against the back of your mouth *and* while hissing and inhaling and exhaling at the same time. Try saying what a cat says when it spits at a dog: [xxxxx]. Or pretend that you're shooting a gun: [pxxxxx]. Think [k], but relax the tongue to blow air through the slot. Trying "hissing" a simple tune with the [x] ("London Bridge is Falling Down" is a good one).

The  $[\gamma]$  is made the same way as the [x]; you simply add voicing: [xxxxxyyyyy]. Think [g], but relax the tongue to blow air through the slot. Mimic this sequence: [xxyyxxyyxx, yyxxyyxxyy].

A chart of fricatives was first presented on p. 22. With these two sounds we can now complete that chart.

	Bilabial	Labiodental	Interdental	Velar	
voiceless	Φ	f	θ	Х	fricative
voiced	β	v	ð	Y	
active articulator	lower lip	lower lip	tongue tip	back of tongue	
passive articulator	upper lip	upper teeth	teeth	velum	

### Oral Exercises

<u>Drill 73</u> *Read across then down (Pay attention to aspiration or lack thereof)* 

kʰa	kha	kʰa	xa	xa	xa
ak <sup>h</sup>	$ak^h$	ak <sup>h</sup>	ax	ax	ax
ga	ga	ga	γa	γa	γα
ag	ag	ag	αγ	ay	αγ
a'ka	a'ka	a'ka	a'γa	a'ya	a'ya
xax	xax	xax	γαγ	γαγ	γαγ
'khakha	'khakha	'k <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup> a	'xaxa	'xaxa	'xaxa
$a'k^hak^h$	$a'k^hak^h$	a'k <sup>h</sup> ak <sup>h</sup>	α'γαγ	a'yay	a'yay

# More Practice with Velar Fricatives

<u>Drill 74</u> R	ead Across				
хаф	xaf	xaθ	γαβ	yav	γαð
фix	fix	θix	βiγ	viγ	ðiy
XES	xɛf	xε∫	yez	yev	yez
хоф	xof	χοθ	γοβ	γov	γoð
xus	xuf	xuθ	yuz	γuv	şuð

# Drill 75 (From Dutch)

$\underline{DIII}$ (170m	Duich				
ax	"Oh dear"	praxtix	beautiful	xət	God
'axtɛrlək'	backwards, stupid	naxt	night	xut	good
'axtər	behind	vraxt	freight	bıx	piglet
axt	eight	maxt	power	ZEX	say
axtəntx'taxtig	eighty-eight	'əxtənt <sup>-</sup>	morning	'əndərxut'	underwear
'dɛrtıx	thirty	'maxtıx	powerful	mæx	belly

# Drill 76 (From Dutch)

<u><b>B</b>1111 / 0</u> (1 / 0			
'zɛɣən	saying	'zæɣən	sawing
'moyən	allowed, liked	γrot⁻	big
'liyən	lying	'vloyən	flew
'dræyən	carrying	yrens	border
'vræyən	asking		

# Drill 77 (From Arabic)

'axi	my brother	xobz	Bread	'xabar	news
ıxti'bar	experience	mu'xadır	drug	xa'bir	expert
mu'xabara	correspondence	'xatım	seal	'xarab	to destroy
max'dʒul	ashamed	xa'b•az	baker	mux	brain
tax'rib	devastation	'xa•dim	servant		

# Drill 78 (From Arabic)

yarb	west	ya'fir	numerous	mu'yamara	adventure
yu'bar	dust	'yalat'	error	'uynija	song
'yabi	foolish	'yamyama	to mumble	mu'yan•ım	singer female)
yar	to mislead	ıstıy'lal	development	mα'γara	cave
yu'rur	conceit	muta'yalyıl	extensive	ıyti'jab	slander
'yasal	to wash	may'mum	worried, sad	'mayrıb	west

#### **VOICE MODIFICATION**

There are several ways in which the human voice can be modified; a number of them are <u>not</u> common among the world's languages. One, though, happens to be fairly common, and that is the modification of NASALIZATION. Any vowel can be nasalized by lowering the soft palate (the velum). Doing so allows the sound to resonate in the nasal cavity (See discussion at the beginning of page 31). Both NASAL and NASALIZED sounds are made with velic opening, but there is an important difference between these two categories of sound.

- "A NASAL segment is produced with a complete closure in the mouth which completely impedes the airstream through the mouth, as with [m] and [n].
- "A NASALIZED vowel is produced with passageways for the airstream through both the mouth and nose, allowing the sound to resonate in both the nasal and oral tracts."<sup>9</sup> Examples of such vowels are those in English which precede nasal sounds, such as the "i" in the word *in* and the "o" in the word *on*.

Vowel nasalization is seen as merely a modification of the quality of the vowel rather than something making the vowel a totally unique sound from its non-nasalized counterpart. This is because not all languages employ nasalization <u>contrastively</u>. That is, they do not have pairs of words with contrasting meanings that differ phonetically only in whether or not a particular vowel is nasalized.

But it is important to be aware of the fact that nasalization is a distinctive feature in more than just a few languages. The IPA notation system indicates vowel nasalization by placing a tilde ( $\sim$ ) directly above the normal vowel symbol, as in [ $\tilde{a}$ ], [ $\tilde{e}$ ], etc.

<u>Drill 79</u>	Drill 80	<u>Drill 81</u>		<u>Drill 82</u> (E	Ewe of Ghana)
pi	sĩn	ə'p <sup>h</sup> ə̃n	upon	dɔ	belly
pĩ	sĩn	ə'lõŋ	along	đõ	be weak
рі	sẽ <sup>i</sup> n	əˈsũm	assume		
pĩ	sẽnd	əˈgæ̃n	again	du	in heaps
pu	sænd	'ə̃ndµ	under	dũ	staring
pũ	sə̃n	'æmbµ	amber		
ро	sũn	'dʒĩndɹ	gender	ma	not
põ	sõ <sup>u</sup> n	'blə̃nd,	blunder	mã	divide
рэ	sõn	'wãndạ	wander		
põ	bĩn	'lĩndạ	lender	so <sup>u</sup> lõŋ	??

#### Oral Exercises

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Bickford and Floyd, p. 73.

#### FLAPS & TRILLS

"The articulation of a stop involves three fairly controlled steps. The active articulator approaches the passive articulator, touches it, and is then released, all in a controlled, deliberate manner. In contrast, the articulation of FLAPs and TRILLs is much less controlled. Flaps involve a single rapid movement with momentary contact between two articulators as one is thrown against the other, as one might tap with a pencil eraser. Trills involve the rapid uncontrolled vibration of an articulatory organ as it is loosely held against another in a moving airstream, sometimes described as "flapping in the breeze."<sup>10</sup>

While there are a number of flaps and trills made at different points of articulation, for our purposes we will focus only on five of them. Here is a chart of those five.

	Alveolar	Uvular <sup>11</sup>	
voiceless	ç		Flap
voiced	ſ		
voiceless		Ŗ	Trill
voiced	r	R	

#### The Alveolar Flap [ſ]

English is in a minority when it comes to the pronunciation of the sound represented by the letter (symbol) "r", the IPA symbol being [1]. The sound produced when encountering this symbol is made by curling the tip of the tongue back just under the alveolar ridge with enough space between the two in order to avoid the production of any friction.

Focusing first on the voiced ALVEOLAR FLAP, [r], consider this. You will frequently hear native English speakers say something like, "Oh, I've never been able to roll my "r"s like they do in Spanish." They may be referring to the alveolar trill, but quite often they have the alveolar flap in mind. Both of these sounds in Spanish are symbolized with the "r", just like we use in our English alphabet. Turn back to page 9 and reread #8 under "Phonetics Procedures." Remember, IPA symbols used to represent different sounds and the letters used to represent those sounds in different languages are <u>not</u> necessarily related. Consider the following:

Look at the words in Drill 83. All of them are written with "dd." When we say these words, the "dd" is realized phonetically as an alveolar flap [r], or what has been referred to as a flapped "r". Rewrite these same words in the second column, BUT...substitute an "r" for the "dd". Now, cover up the first column and pronounce the second column of words just as you would the first column. You have crossed a big <u>psychological</u> barrier if you can do this. You have been flapping your Spanish "r"s all of your life and just didn't know it.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Bickford and Floyd, p. 141. In her own footnote to this paragraph, Bickford says, "Although simple vocal fold vibration fits this definition of a trill, it is not considered to be a trill."

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Notice the difference between this symbol [R] and the English capital "R". It's just a matter of size.





Using the same words above, change the voiced alveolar flap, [r], into a voiceless one [r]. Now that you can articulate the alveolar flap...

Drill 84	Drill 85	Drill 86	Drill 87	Drill 88	<u>Drill 89</u>
'ara	'p <sup>h</sup> ara	'para	ta'raŗ	ka'raru	p <sup>h</sup> ara'ra
'ana'	p <sup>h</sup> εra	'pɛɾɑ	te'raŗ	ke'raru	p <sup>h</sup> era're
'æra	'p <sup>h</sup> æra	'pæra	tæ'raŗ	kæ'raru	p <sup>h</sup> æra'ræ
'ira	'p <sup>h</sup> ira	'pira	ti'raŗ	ki'raru	p <sup>h</sup> ira'ri
'ura	'p <sup>h</sup> ura	'pura	tu'raŗ	ku'raru	p <sup>h</sup> ura'ru
'ora	'p <sup>h</sup> ora	'pora	to'raŗ	ko'raru	p <sup>h</sup> ora'ro
'əra	'p <sup>h</sup> əra	'pəra	tə <sub>r</sub> uî	kə'raru	p <sup>h</sup> ɔɾɑ'ɾɔ

# Oral Exercises (Pay attention to accents!)

#### <u>More Oral Exercises</u> (From Spanish)

Drill 90		Drill 91		Drill 92	
'karo	expensive	bo'rat∫o	drunk	'ambre	hunger
'para	in order that	a'rena	sand	'kraneo	skull
muro	wall	a'rina	flour	su'friç	to suffer
'duro	hard	kompa'raç	to compare	mo'reno	dark-haired

'tira	strip	iç	to go	tras	after
fɛˈɾos	fierce	kora'son	heart	'trapo	rag
'toro	bull	ta'rea	job, task	bıo,paî	to test, check
na'ris	nose	'libre	free	dra'matiko	dramatic
'pero	but	'feria	fair	fɛɾi'aðo	holiday

### Additional Practice with Flaps

<u>Drill 93</u>					
a'rato	'erato	pi'ratu	'tærɔpa	ta'riç	arurı'ti
a'reto	'ereto	pi'rɛtu	tærɔ'pɛ	pa'riç	ære'rotu
a'rito	'erito	pi'ritu	tæ'rɔpi	ka'riç	'ərəreta
a'roto	'eroto	pi'rotu	tærɔ'po	ma'riç	oræˈɾʊtə
a'ruto	'eruto	pi'rutu	'tærɔpu	la'riç	erıru'ti
a'rəto	'erəto	pi'rətu	tæ'rɔpɔ	ga'riç	ura'rīna

# <u>The Alveolar Trill</u> [r]

This is most likely the sound to which many are alluding when they complain about not being able to roll their "r"s.

"In attempting to learn to articulate trills, it is important to realize that they involve a rapid series of automatic closures brought about by the pressure of the moving airstream on the relaxed active articulator. Only the starting and stopping of the trill are under the speaker's neuromuscular control. In between, the dynamics of the airstream keep the trill going. In other words, you cannot expect to produce a trill by firing off a rapid series of controlled short stops or flaps. In fact, attempting to do so will create sufficient tension in the articulator that it cannot vibrate in the airstream, [thus] preventing the trill from happening.

"Your tongue <u>must</u> be relaxed to produce this trill correctly, because it needs to be set in vibration by the moving airstream. Keep your jaw fairly closed. Some people find it helpful to lie on their backs with their heads hanging off the edge of a bed; this allows gravity to help relax the tongue. Try saying "butted up" or "put it on," more and more rapidly, until they become [brəp] and [pran]."<sup>12</sup>

Quite a number of the world's languages have this sound in their phonetic inventory, so it is important that you strive for success in producing it; and keep on striving for success if at first you don't succeed.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Bickford and Floyd, p. 142.

# Oral Exercises

REMEMBER! [r] is the symbol for this trill. Do <u>not</u> confuse this with the alphabetic (orthographic) symbol for the English "r" whose IPA symbol is [J].

Drill 94	<u>Drill 95</u>	<u>Drill 96</u>	Drill 97	<u>Drill 98</u> (Fr	rom Spanish)
'ira	'rito	a'rit <sup>h</sup> o	ərɛˈti	ra'mon	male name
'era	'reto	a'ret <sup>h</sup> o	ərɛˈte	a'ros	rice
'ura	'ruto	a'rut <sup>h</sup> o	ərɛ'tu	'pɛrla	pearl
'ura	'ruto	a'rut <sup>h</sup> o	ərɛˈtʊ	ɛn'rike	male name
ora	'roto	a'rot <sup>h</sup> o	ərɛ'to	feroka'ril	railroad
ˈɔrɑ	'rəto	a'rət <sup>h</sup> o	ərɛˈtɔ	era'ðura	horseshoe

# Additional Practice with Trills

Drills 99					Mimicry	
'rala	a'ral	o∫ra'?ul	Dzə'rasko	zaru'xin	'ruta	route
'rɛla	a'rel	o∫rɛ'?ul	dzə'resko	t∫ <sup>h</sup> æ'roksi	'roto	broken
'rila	a'ril	o∫ri'?ul	dʒə'risko	rezəya'ri	raro	rare
rola	a'rol	o∫ro'?ul	dʒə'rosko	t <sup>h</sup> a'rosk <sup>h</sup> a∫in	ri'ezgo	risk
'rula	a'rul	o∫ru'?ul	dʒə'rusko	ros't∫upst <sup>h</sup>	ko'rɛŗ	to run
rəla	a'rɔl	o∫rɔ'?ul	dʒə'rəsko	aru'riŗ	korupsi'on	corruption

# The Uvular Trill [R]

The phenomenon of snoring utilizes the same active articulator as this trill, the uvula (that small flap of skin hanging from the center of the velum in the back of the mouth), but with an <u>ingressive</u> airstream. The action of gargling will produce an egressive uvular trill which may be voiced for some people, and voiceless for others. Practice this sound using the following exercises:

# Oral Exercises

<u>Drill 100</u>	<u>Drill 101</u>	<u>Drill 102</u>	<u>Drill 103</u>	<u>Drill 104</u>	<u>Drill 105</u>
a'ra	'rata	'arapa	ka'rate	p <sup>h</sup> Ŗa'ra	ato'rin
a're	'reta	ere'pe	'kerito	t <sup>h</sup> Ŗe'Re	e'rap <sup>h</sup> os
a'ri	'rita	i'ripi	kiru'tə	k <sup>h</sup> Ŗi'ri	'rudıtəŋ
a'ro	'rota	oro'po	'koreti	p <sup>h</sup> Ŗo'ro	rerə't∫ <sup>h</sup> uz
a'ru	'ruta	'urupu	ku'rotu	t <sup>h</sup> Ŗu'RU	arı,orq
a'rj	'rəta	ว <sup>เ</sup> หวpว	kərə'ta	k <sup>h</sup> หูว <sup>'</sup> หว	ŋe'roya

#### **LATERALS**

Production of a LATERAL is accomplished when the tongue tip makes contact with the roof of the mouth, blocking lung air from passing over the top of the tongue and thereby forcing it to pass around (laterally) either one or both sides of the tongue. The most common lateral in English is [1], as in "long," "live," and "low."

"All laterals are either fricatives or approximants. An APPROXIMANT is a sound produced by two articulators coming close to each other. The airstream for approximants is directed by the articulators but not impeded...The airstream is not impeded sufficiently to produce audible turbulence between the articulators...The term approximant is derived from the articulation involved: the active articulator (or some part of it – in the case of laterals, the tongue *sides*) "approximates" or approaches the passive articulator."<sup>13</sup> Below is a table.

	Alveolar	
Voiceless	ļ	Lateral approximant
Voiced	1	
Voiceless	ł	Lateral fricative
Voiced	ß	
active articulator	tongue tip	

#### Production Hints

"[1] is the sound that most English speakers use in the pronunciation of words such as 'long,' 'live,' and 'low,' in which a lateral occurs at the onset of a syllable. The syllable-initial lateral approximant [1] in English is sometimes called a 'clear l' to distinguish it from the syllable-final lateral approximant in words such as 'bill' or 'null' [called a 'dark l'].

"[l] is produced with the same articulation as [l], but without voicing. Say the sequence [lal:al:a]<sup>14</sup>, pausing on the laterals, then repeat the entire sequence without voicing [lal:al:a]. In practicing to produce this sound, be careful not to introduce noisy turbulence.

"[4] is produced with an articulation similar to that of [1], but with sufficient constriction and air flow to cause audible noise due to air turbulence. Start with the voiceless lateral just described, then squeeze the sides of your tongue toward the roof of your mouth to narrow the constriction and thus produce noise. The tip of your tongue must remain on the alveolar ridge.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> Ibid., p. 77.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> At the bottom of page 16, the [•] was introduced to indicate a lengthening of the previous sound. The [:] simply indicates extra lengthening.

"[b] is produced in the same way as the voiceless alveolar fricative [4], but with voicing. It sounds similar to [3], but with the addition of a lateral quality. Beware of rounding your lips for this voiced lateral, just as you need to beware of rounding your lips for the sibilant [3]."<sup>15</sup>

#### **Oral Exercises**

First, read across each row. Then go back and read down each column, being careful to watch accents. Guard against inserting a very lightly voiced [1] <u>after</u> the laterals in drills 92 and 93 that are followed by vowels. There will be a tendency to do this, but you will want to aim at articulating <u>only</u> what's there.

<u>Drill 106</u>			
la	ļa	ła	Ъа
al	aļ	ał	ałz
lal	Ĵaĵ	łał	<b>ե</b> զբ
a'la	a'la	a'ła	a'ţa
a'lal	a'lal	a'łal	a'ţal
'lala	'lala	'łala	'ţala
la'lal	la'lal	la' <del>l</del> al	la'ţal



Well, rest a bit and then go on. It's not much further.

Drill	107

'lulu	'lulu	' <b>ł</b> ulu	' <del>]</del> ulu
'∫ulu	'∫uļu	'∫ułu	՝∫սԷս
∫tu'lu	∫tu' <b>l</b> u	∫tu'łu	∫tu'Էu
't∫ <sup>h</sup> ulu	't∫ <sup>h</sup> uļu	't∫ <sup>h</sup> ułu	't∫ <sup>հ</sup> uԷu
t∫ <sup>h</sup> ul	t∫ <sup>h</sup> uļ	t∫ʰuł	t∫ <sup>հ</sup> uԷ
ka'rolo	ka'roĵo	ka'roło	ka'rozo
'lola	'llola	'4lola	'ţlola

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> Bickford and Floyd, p. 78.

#### **TRACKING**

When learning any new language (i.e., new for you), you will always encounter unique features of that language that you should want to reproduce as closely as possible as you begin speaking it. These features – including such things as relative pitch of the voice, rate of speed, relative lengths of various segments, and certain voice qualities – are called PROSODIC FEATURES. One technique easily available to aid you in copying these prosodic features is TRACKING. It can be invaluable to you as you seek to eliminate your own "foreign" accent and sound as much like a native speaker as possible.

Mimicking is a matter of echoing what is said in a sample of speech you have heard just after you have finished hearing it. Tracking is different; you <u>speak right along with your sample as</u> <u>nearly simultaneously as possible</u>.

"The language sample used for tracking should be recorded rather than live, primarily for two reasons: (1) Tracking live speech in the presence of the speaker can drive that person crazy. It is difficult to concentrate on your train of thought if someone is speaking back every word that you say, the very second it comes out of your mouth! (2) You should listen to the sample several times before you even begin tracking it. Then you will need to track the same sample several times. It is very unlikely that a speaker will be happy to repeat the sample for you as many times as you will need to hear it and track with it."<sup>16</sup>

Some suggestions:

- 1. At first, record a fairly short sample. Listen to it several times and then begin tracking it. Listen first, track, listen again, track, etc.
- 2. Focus your attention carefully on just one of the language's prosodic features. (Troublesome individual segments as well can be mastered using tracking.)
- 3. Go back and track again, and this time, focus on any weaknesses the recording reveals.
- 4. Since tracking would involve a lot of rewinding of tapes, computers can be used to record sound and play it back, making the entire process much simpler.
- 5. REMEMBER! Tracking as nearly simultaneously as possible is the goal.
- 6. With increasing proficiency in tracking short utterances will come the ability to track longer ones, and this will boost your facility in pronunciation of the language. Use material you have memorized rather than unfamiliar material. Doing so will help you avoid the temptation to mimic after a slight pause rather than to actually track.<sup>17</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Ibid., p. 55. Concerning recording, in her own footnote to this paragraph, Bickford says, "Any recordplayback system of suitable quality will serve the purpose, such as a cassette tape recorder, a video camcorder, or a computer with sound recording capability."

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> We are indebted to Bickford's and Floyd's book for this whole discussion on tracking. Their book was printed about the time computer technology began making great strides in the area of recording. Consequently, words like "record" and "rewind" are now outdated and really no longer meaningful to a discussion such as this.

#### **PITCH VARIATION**

Saying correctly the individual sounds of your new language is only the beginning. One prosodic feature of any language that is an extremely important aspect of good pronunciation is the proper use of the PITCH of your voice. Perhaps you need to speak in a high voice, or a low voice, or something in between. Or maybe you need to vary from one to the other. Whatever the case, reproduction of the pitch levels used by the native speakers of your target language is the only thing that will enable you to sound really "right" in that language.

Pitch is used in languages in two different ways: intonation and tone.

#### Intonation

INTONATION is the pitch pattern over an entire utterance and can be used to signal emotions, convey certain thoughts or attitudes, or to distinguish between things like questions and statements. But intonation is <u>never</u> used to distinguish one word from another.

Consider the following examples of intonation in English with high-level, mid-level, lowlevel, rising and falling lines being used to indicate a corresponding level of the voice. Read across each row, ignoring the vertical lines (they're there just to avoid everything being jammed together).



#### <u>Tone</u>

We have now seen that intonation patterns in a language can change the implication of utterances. But the words in those utterances maintain their basic meaning. However, there are languages in which the pitch of a word or syllable in a word contributes as much to the meaning of the word as do the individual segments. The pitches are just as much a part of the meaning of the word as the segments are. These languages are called TONAL LANGUAGES or TONE LANGUAGES, and the pitches in these languages are called TONES.

Consider the Thai language. The single syllable,  $[k^ha]$ , can have five different meanings, depending on the pitch of the voice imposed upon it.

$\overline{k^{h}a}$ :	"to engage in trade"
<u>kha</u> :	"galangal, a cooking herb"
k <sup>h</sup> a:	"a grass"
kha.	"to kill"
kha.	"leg"

This is a clear case of tone and not intonation, since the pitch of the voice actually determines the meanings of the words, the segments being identical in all of the words.

Bickford makes the point in her book on page 63 that, "This is a very different situation from English, in which you can say, for example, the word 'duck' with a high pitch, low pitch, high falling pitch, low rising pitch, or any other pitch or pitch combination you please, and still be communicating the basic meaning, 'quacking water fowl'."

She goes on to say, "Another big difference between intonation and tone is that <u>intonation</u> (underlining mine) contours are distributed over entire phrases...whereas <u>tones</u> (underlining mine) in many languages are confined to syllables or words and do not spread to whole phrases."

# Types of Tone Languages

Some tone languages use only LEVEL tones (the pitch is heard to stay the same throughout an entire syllable). Others also use TONE GLIDES (the pitch is heard to rise, or fall, or do both within a single syllable).

"When a language utilizes tone glides that have been analyzed as not being sequences of level tones, then that language is called a CONTOUR TONE LANGUAGE."<sup>18</sup> Note <u>some</u> of the possibilities on the following chart.

$Tone \rightarrow$	level	long rise	short rise	long fall	short fall	rise>fall	fall>rise
Range 🖌			/				
high				$\mathcal{I}$			$\vee \vee \vee$
mid			/	$\left( \right)$	$\sim$	$\land \land \land$	$\lor \lor \lor$
low			/	(		$\land \land \land$	
					· · · · · ·	•	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Bickford and Floyd, p. 64.

As well as differing as to the kinds of tone they have, languages also differ as to the number of tones they have. Igbo (of Nigeria) has two levels, high and low; Trique (of Mexico) has five levels; and Thai, as you have already seen, has two levels and three glides.

# Things to Keep in Mind When Considering Tone and Intonation

- Where does the sound start? Is it pitched high, low, or mid-range?
- In what direction does the sound go after that? Does it remain level, drop, or rise?
- If it drops or rises, does it glide up or down a long or a short time?
- If it drops or rises, does it only go in one direction, or does it rise and fall, or fall and rise?

# Oral Exercises

Drill 109 – Level Tones: Hi/Mid/Lo							
а	b	с	d	e	f	g	
sa <u>no</u>	<u>sa</u> no	sa no	sa <u>no</u>	<u>sa no</u>	sa no	sa no	
fi le	 	fi le	<u></u> <u>fi_le</u>	<u>fi</u> le		 fi le	
bo ku	bo ku	bo ku — —	bo <u>ku</u>	<u>bo ku</u>	bo <u>ku</u>	bo ku	
le si	lε si	<u>lε</u> <u>si</u>	<u>le</u> si	lε si	<u>l</u> ɛ si	lε <u>si</u>	

### Oral Exercises

а	b	с	d /	е	f	g
ga mò	ga∖mo ∨	ga mà	ga mo	ga <u>mo</u>	ga mo	ga mo
$\frac{1}{te}$ sa	te sa	$\frac{1}{\text{te}} \propto \frac{1}{3}$	te∕ sa	$\uparrow$ te sa	$\underline{te}$ sa	te\ sa
so pa	so\pa	so pa	so pa	so pa	so pa	so pa

# <u>Oral Exercises</u>

Drill 111 – Tone						
а	b	c /	d	е	f	
<u>ha</u> ke mu	ma <u>to</u> ku	so pa ti	<u>li</u> pa tu	fo sa ki — — ∨	na gu mu ∨ —	
∫o∕ta si	∨ si fa tu ^	ma∕fi la	∨ ∧ ba su ta∖	nd se mæ	bu/lu/ku	
sa pi to	su tu ba	lg∕ <u>fi</u> no ∖∕	ko ti ba	so ma tu	$\bigvee_{i=1}^{ke} \frac{i}{na} \underline{fi}$	

$$\begin{array}{c|c} \underline{Oral\ Exercises} \\ \hline \underline{Drill\ 112 - Tone} \\ \hline & & & & \\ \hline so\ ti\ \underline{ja}\ ke\ mu \\ \hline \underline{lu}\ \overline{se}\ so\ ti\ ha\ \overline{ke}\ mu \\ \hline & & & \\ \underline{lu}\ \overline{se}\ so\ ti\ ha\ \overline{ke}\ mu \\ \hline & & & \\ \hline \end{array} \\ \hline \hline & & & \\ \hline \hline & & & \\ \hline \hline &$$

 $\wedge$ zu

# PHARYNGEAL CONSONANTS

While an ever-increasing number of people are entering the Middle East to work, the number is still small enough such that the authors of this manual have put consideration of these consonants at the end.

Pharyngeal consonants are articulated between the uvular and glottal places of articulation. These consonants exist in several languages in the Middle East (most notably Arabic) and the Caucasus, as well as in a few Salish languages in North America. Below is a table of the two consonants under consideration.

			You kinda feel
	Pharyngeal		like you're
voiceless	ħ	fricative	vou say these.
voiced	2		
active	tongue root		-
articulator			
passive	back of		LEL )
articulator	pharyngeal wall		
*13		_	

Drill 113 (From Arabic)

'ħa:rab	he fought	'?aħmar	red	'həgərə	he left me
ħa'mi:r	donkeys	ħam:	concern	ħal'la	right away
ħa'rir	silk	Sam:	paternal uncle	S?ala	on

#### NOT EVERYONE SOUNDS ALIKE

It's easy for one to become narrowly focused with respect to what the world's languages have to offer the unsuspecting learner, especially since native speakers "play" with no more than thirty-five to forty-five sounds in their own language (See page 4, #1). By now you have seen that there exists a whole range of "new" sounds in the world's phonetic inventory numbering in the hundreds. Be prepared for other significant differences as well. Many non-Indo-European languages contemplate grammatical features that are as different from English as night is from day; their basic sentence structure, instead of being subject/verb/object (SVO), can be VSO. A very few are object-initial languages, OSV. A number inflect their verbs in such a complex way as to make them among the world's most difficult to learn for beginners. And on and on go the differences.

You will see a number of words below that are taken from a couple of North American indigenous minority languages whose phonetic combinations are nothing short of amazing, especially when it comes to consonant clusters...and the places in which they occur. The one English word containing more consonants clustered together than any other is the word sixths - [sɪks $\theta$ s]. Only four consonants. And that's it. Enjoy trying to pronounce the words below. The last one in the second column of Chinook words ends with six consonants!

$\underline{D}\underline{\Pi}\underline{\Pi}\underline{\Pi}\underline{\Pi}\underline{\Pi}\underline{\Pi}\underline{\Pi}\underline{\Pi}\underline{\Pi}\Pi$	Chinook of Canada)		
ił′t∫k <sup>w</sup> a	water	ek <sup>h</sup> t <sup>h</sup> k <sup>h</sup>	head
'it <sup>h</sup> k <sup>wh</sup> ti	house	'ekt∫xam	he sang
it <sup>h</sup> k <sup>h</sup> p∫	feet	'et∫amxt∫	my heart
i'gelçt∫utk <sup>h</sup>	flint	nukstx	smallness
o'?olɛpt∫kiç	fire	ol'xɑkxalp <sup>h</sup> t∫ <sup>h</sup> kiç	our fire
't <sup>h</sup> gak <sup>h</sup> t <sup>h</sup> k <sup>h</sup> ak∫	their heads	a't∫ok <sup>h</sup> ts <sup>h</sup> k <sup>h</sup> tamit <sup>¬</sup>	he roasts
∫'txaxamuks	our dogs	a'klok∫t <sup>h</sup> p <sup>h</sup> t∫ <sup>h</sup> k <sup>h</sup>	she carries it up from the beach
ok∫t`	louse		

	Drill 114	(From	Chinook	of	Canada)
--	-----------	-------	---------	----	---------

Drill 115 (From Seri of Mexico) ptkamn lobster ?ɛˈkɛktˈktam father-in-law

#### **REFERENCES**

- Bickford, Anita C. and Floyd, Rick. *Articulatory Phonetics: Tools for Analyzing the World's Languages*. Dallas: SIL International, 2006.
- Gradin, Dwight. PILAT Program in Language Acquisition Techniques. Colorado.
- Handbook of the International Phonetics Association. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, [1999].
- Lessons in Phonetic Sounds. Sanford, FL: New Tribes Mission, 2007.
- Smalley, W. A. Manual of Articulatory Phonetics. Pasadena: William Carey Library, 1980.
- Special credit and thanks go to *PILAT* for many exercises and explanations adapted from their materials.
- Special credit and thanks also go to Bickford's and Floyd's book for use in the "Drills" of a number of their examples of linguistic field data from around the world.



End of the road for hard-working phonetics student